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AMENDMENT OF SOLICITATION/MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT

Except as provided herein, all terms and conditions of the document referenced in Item 9A or 10A, as heretofore changed, remains unchanged and in full force and effect.

15A. NAME AND TITLE OF SIGNER (Type or print)

30-105-04

EXCEPTION TO SF 30

APPROVED BY OIRM 11-84

STANDARD FORM 30 (Rev. 10-83)

Prescribed by GSA

FAR (48 CFR) 53.243

The purpose of this Amendment 0004 is to answer questions submitted in response to the initial soliicitation posting, update the Performance

 Work Statement,attach the current Collective Bargaining Agreement, and to extend the closing date of the solicitation to 31 August 2016. 

 Please see Summary of Changes.  The Contractual Point of Contact is Thomas Carey, who can be reached at thomas.carey2@navy.mil or

 at 215-697-9657.

1. CONTRACT ID CODE

PAGE OF  PAGES

J

1

17

16A. NAME AND TITLE OF CONTRACTING OFFICER (Type or print)

16C. DATE SIGNED

BY

16-Aug-2016

16B. UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

15C. DATE SIGNED

15B. CONTRACTOR/OFFEROR

(Signature of Contracting Officer)

(Signature of person authorized to sign)

8. NAME AND ADDRESS OF CONTRACTOR  (No., Street, County, State and Zip Code)

X

N00189-16-R-Z030

X

9B. DATED (SEE ITEM 11)

10-Jun-2016

10B. DATED  (SEE ITEM 13)

9A. AMENDMENT OF SOLICITATION NO.

11. THIS ITEM ONLY APPLIES TO AMENDMENTS OF SOLICITATIONS

X

The above numbered solicitation is amended as set forth in Item 14.  The hour and date specified for receipt of Offer  

X

is extended,

is not extended.

Offer must acknowledge receipt of this amendment prior to the hour and date specified in the solicitation or as amended by one of the following methods: 

(a) By completing Items 8 and 15, and returning

1

copies of the amendment; (b) By acknowledging receipt of this amendment on each copy of the offer submitted;

or (c) By separate letter or telegram which includes a reference to the solicitation and amendment numbers.  FAILURE OF YOUR ACKNOWLEDGMENT TO BE 

RECEIVED AT THE PLACE DESIGNATED FOR THE RECEIPT OF OFFERS PRIOR TO THE HOUR AND DATE SPECIFIED MAY RESULT IN  

REJECTION OF YOUR OFFER.  If by virtue of this amendment you desire to change an offer already submitted, such change may be made by telegram or letter, 

provided each telegram or letter makes reference to the solicitation and this amendment, and is received prior to the opening hour and date specified.

12. ACCOUNTING AND APPROPRIATION DATA (If required)

13. THIS ITEM APPLIES ONLY TO MODIFICATIONS OF CONTRACTS/ORDERS.

IT MODIFIES THE CONTRACT/ORDER NO. AS DESCRIBED IN ITEM 14.

A. THIS CHANGE ORDER IS ISSUED PURSUANT TO:  (Specify authority) THE CHANGES SET FORTH IN ITEM 14 ARE MADE IN THE

 CONTRACT ORDER NO. IN ITEM 10A.

B. THE ABOVE NUMBERED CONTRACT/ORDER IS MODIFIED TO REFLECT THE ADMINISTRATIVE CHANGES (such as changes in paying 

office, appropriation date, etc.) SET FORTH IN ITEM 14, PURSUANT TO THE AUTHORITY OF FAR 43.103(B).

C. THIS SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT IS ENTERED INTO PURSUANT TO AUTHORITY OF:

D. OTHER (Specify type of modification and authority)

E. IMPORTANT:   Contractor

is not,   

is required to sign this document and return

copies to the issuing office.

14. DESCRIPTION OF AMENDMENT/MODIFICATION  (Organized by UCF section headings, including solicitation/contract subject matter

 where feasible.)

10A. MOD. OF CONTRACT/ORDER NO.

0004

2. AMENDMENT/MODIFICATION NO.

5. PROJECT NO.(If applicable)

6. ISSUED BY

3. EFFECTIVE DATE

16-Aug-2016

CODE

NAVSUP FLC NORFOLK PHILADELPHIA OFFICE

ATTN: THOMAS CAREY

700 ROBBINS AVENUE, BLDG. 2B

PHILADELPHIA PA 19111-5083

N00189

7. ADMINISTERED BY  (If other than item 6)

4. REQUISITION/PURCHASE REQ. NO.

CODE

See Item 6

FACILITY CODE

CODE

EMAIL:

TEL:


SECTION SF 30 BLOCK 14 CONTINUATION PAGE 

The following items are applicable to this modification:   

        SUMMARY OF CHANGES
SECTION  SF 30 - BLOCK 14 CONTINUATION PAGE 

SUMMARY OF CHANGES  

The following items are applicable to this amendment:

SECTION  SF 30 - BLOCK 14 CONTINUATION PAGE 

The following have been added by full text: 

        AMENDMENT 0004
This amendment incorporates the current Collective Bargaining Agreement executed between Hana Industries and the International Union, Security Police and Fire professionals of America (SPFPA). This amendment also provides workload data for the last year under the current contract.  This workload data is provided for historical information only and does not in any way project actual needs during the period of performance of any resultant contract.  Additionally, the workload data does not alter the terms of the PWS or the RFP in any way.  Where a conflict may be perceived, the RFP takes precedence. 

As a result of the changes above, the provision of the RFP entitled “Submission of Proposals” starting on page #24 of the original RFP is amended as shown in the body of this amendment. 

Further the amendment makes some change to Attachment IV of the RFP as provided in the new attachment.

This amendment is issued in two parts.  Part I is a list of questions asked during the solicitation period and the answers to those questions.  Part II represents changes to the RFP, including the PWS.

        AMENDMENT 0004 Q&A
Solicitation #: N00189-16-R-Z030
Title: NCIS Security Services at RKB
PART- I    The following Questions have been submitted.  Duplicate questions have been combined.  Responses to these questions do not change the RFP except as stated in Part II.
	Answer
	Question

	See Part II:  See new attachment V: CBA
	Question:  Is there a current Wage Determination for this contract?



	See Part II
	Question:  Items 1002 - 5002 of Form SF 1449 shows a POP start date of 01 October 2016, whereas the Base Period start date in Section 5.0, as well as in the Delivery Information Section on Page 22 and elsewhere within the solicitation, are shown as 01 February 2017.  Please clarify the intended POP start date.



	See Part II
	Question:  In regards to Clause 5252.242-9404, Reporting Requirements    Pg. 65 there is a question regarding the submission of a monthly status report, it is stated that “The report shall provide the number of hours expended, the total cost incurred to date, data status and delivery status”.  

Is the provision of hours expended and cost incurred required for an FFP contract?  



	See Part II
	Question:  The workforce under this solicitation is unionized.  A copy of the Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) has not been included in the solicitation package.  For bidding purposes, which prevailing wage determination should be used?



	See Part II
	Question:  Is the intension to incorporate the CBA after proposal submission via FAR 52.222-43?



	See Part II:  Attachment IV to the RFP has been amended
	Question:  In section 3.7.1 of the RFP it states the term “prompt” as stated above equates being nominated for SCI access 60 days before the start of the contract. 

In the attachment #1 Security Clearance Requirements states, the term “prompt” as stated above equates to within 90 days of being nominated for SCI access. 

Please clarify if prompt is 60 days before the start of the contract or within 90 days of being nominated for SCI access.



	See Part II:  See new attachment VI; Current Workload Data
	Question:  How many posts are required for Security Escort Personnel? 



	See Part II:  See new attachment VI; Current Workload Data
	Question:  The PWS specifies the number of posts for the Visitor Control Center and Security Operations Center but does not provide an anticipated level of effort for the Security Escort function.  Will the government provide an anticipated level of effort or estimated number of escorts required to meet the requirements of the Security Escort Personnel sub-paragraph of PWS 2.2?



	The Solicitation is clear on its face.
	Question: For personnel other than SOC personnel, how are reporting start and end times to be adjusted for delayed openings and early closures in cases such as inclement weather?



	See Part II:  See new attachment VI; Current Workload Data
	Question:  Does the facility receive visitors after normal hours? If so, what is the average number of visitors after normal hours?



	The Solicitation is clear on its face.
	Question: Must all personnel be certified in first aid? If certain personnel, which ones?



	The Solicitation is clear on its face.
	Question:  Do SOC Center and VCC personnel need to be knowledgeable in JPAS functions?



	The Solicitation is clear on its face.
	Question:  Does the government require an additional designated contract employee to remain onsite to perform for Newcomer Security Orientations as well as weekly FSMD Staff Meetings?



	The Solicitation is clear on its face.
	Question:  Will the Government consider the addition of a Cost Reimbursable ODC CLIN with a Not-To-Exceed amount for the provision and replenishment of the stated uniforms?



	The Solicitation is clear on its face.
	Will the government provide minimum education and qualifications for each of the four functional areas? i.e Security Operations Center Personnel, Visitor Control Center Personnel, Security Escort Personnel, Security Education and Training Support.



	The RFP Number cited in Block 5 is correct.
	Question:  The RFP number referenced in the delivery address is different than the Solicitation number on the SF 1449 and NECO site.  Please verify the correct RFP number.



	The Solicitation is clear on its face.
	Question:  Solicitation states if Reps and Certs are updated in ORCA, a hard copy submission is not required.  

Given that SAM has replaced ORCA, is a hard copy submission of the Reps and Certs required if they are current and updated in SAM?



	The Solicitation is clear on its face.
	Question:  Each page of each copy should include the following legend:  Source Selection Information - See FAR 2.101 and 3.104.

Can this statement be placed in the footer on each page? 



	See Part II:  Also See new attachment V: CBA


	Question:  The instructions state:   Volume II shall include the completed solicitation documents and a complete and detailed price breakdown with all supporting documentation in order to show compliance with the Professional Compensation clause of the Request for Proposal (RFP).  The price proposal shall include all elements of price and such other price information as considered appropriate to show compliance.

Please clarify exactly what pricing elements are required for submission, given that the contract is not covered by the Service Contract Act, adequate price competition exists for this procurement, and a Professional Compensation Plan will be submitted which will provide the proposed labor rates for this effort.



	See Part II:  See new attachment V; CBA
	Question:  What is the current pay rate for incumbent or existing personnel?  


	See Part II:  See new attachment V; CBA
	Question: What is the Occupational Code or Labor Category for the contract personnel with regards to this contract? 


	A CDRL based on the actual award date will be incorporated into the award document.
	Question:  In regards to Attachment DD1423, CDRL there is a question regarding the Period of Performance for CLINs 1002 -5002 begins on October 1st.  The requirements of CDRL 1 state that the deliverable is due October 31st and the requirements of CDRL 2 state that the deliverable is due on November 1st.  

Is it the government’s intention that these deliverables are to be submitted prior to the actual period of performance expected to begin on February 1, 2017?



	See Part II
	Question:  With respect to the expected Base Period of Performance of February 1, 2017 and the amount of time needed to process SCI approvals for new contracts, what is the government’s intended award date?



	The Solicitation is clear on its face.
	Question: It is stated in the 2.2 position descriptions for the SOC, VCC and Escort personnel that “basic computing skills are necessary”. However, Section 3.10 states that personnel must “be a proficient user of MS Office 2010, specifically Outlook, Access, and Word”.  

Please define the computing skills for each of the following 4 functional areas listed in the PWS.



	See Part II. The word ‘All’ has been added to 3.10.
	Question:  Please indicate the position(s) to which the minimum education and qualification description in Section 3.10 applies.



	The Solicitation is clear on its face.
	Question:  Does the government intend for the Security Education and Training Support position to conduct First Aid/CPR training?  If so, will the cost of First Aid/CPR training for contractor personnel be reimbursable to the contractor?



	The Solicitation is clear on its face.
	Question:  Is NCIS RKB affiliated with a First Aid/CPR training center?



	See Part II:  See new attachment VI; Current Workload Data
	Question: How many hours of surge support were required during the performance of the current contract, by year?



	The Solicitation is clear on its face.
	Question: Contractor must be capable of being indoctrinated for SCI assess on the first day of the start of the contract.

Will employees with an active TS and eligible for SCI be able to start work upon Day 1 of POP or must they wait until their SCI access has been granted? 



	See Part II:  Attachment IV to the RFP has been amended 
	Question:  In the Index section of the list of overall security services, it states, “Russell-Knox Security, Awareness, Training & Education, Monday through Friday, 30 hours per week”. 

Please confirm if this is intended to be a part-time position or if there are additional duties to be performed by this employee to equate to a 40 hour position.



	The Solicitation is clear on its face.
	Question:  Does the contract require TS Facility storage capability as stated on the DD-254? 



	The Solicitation is clear on its face.
	Question:  Security Operations: 

Attachment 1 Training Courses and Descriptions - Will the CPR and First Aid training be provided to contractor personnel by the government at no cost to the contractor?



	The Solicitation is clear on its face.
	Question:  I would just like to ask for clarification regarding clearances for N00189-16-R-Z030. Is the vendor required to hold a facility security clearance or just the officers assigned to the contract?   I noticed a few items that mentioned that the employees could be managed under NCIS's JPAS coordinator.   



	The Solicitation is clear on its face.
	Question:  Is the Security Education and Training support position required to wear a uniform?



	See Part II:  See new attachment VI; Current Workload Data
	Question:  Can you provide the average number of uncleared visitors to your facility who require escorts? Daily? Weekly? Monthly?



	See Part II:  See new attachment VI; Current Workload Data
	Question:  How many uncleared janitorial personnel are involved? How many separate crews? 



	See Part II:  See new attachment VI; Current Workload Data
	Question:  How often do maintenance activities (such as preventive maintenance and repairs) require escort?



	See Part II:  See new attachment VI; Current Workload Data
	Question:  How many surge activities in the last five years required a modification to the contract?



	The Solicitation is clear on its face.
	Question:  Please refer to Items 3.9 and 3.10. Are these items about the same individual employee?



	See Part II
	Question:  Does Item 3.10 apply to all personnel or only to the position associated with 3.9 or to a certain group of personnel?



	The Solicitation is clear on its face.
	Question:  Referring to Item 3.10, must all personnel (including Surge Personnel) be proficient users of Microsoft Office 2010 or does that only apply to certain personnel? If to certain personnel, which ones? 



	The Solicitation is clear on its face.
	Question:  Referring to Item 3.10, must all personnel (including Surge Personnel?) have 5 years' experience as stated? If to certain personnel, which ones?



	The Solicitation is clear on its face.
	Question:  How many posts/entrances are to be manned after hours?



	The Solicitation is clear on its face.
	Question:  How many posts/entrances are to be manned during regular hours?



	The Solicitation is clear on its face.
	Question:  Is the Security Operations Specialist (Item 3.9) referring to a lead person or a type of project manager?

	The Solicitation is clear on its face.
	Question:  How is the contractor expected to handle OPM-directed closures such as district snow emergencies?



	The Solicitation is clear on its face.
	Question: Are OPM-directed closures such as district snow emergencies considered surge? 



	This question is not relevant to the RFP
	Question: What is the average number of people (government or contractor) who work in the facility on a daily basis?



	EMCOR Government Services Inc. 

Contract Number is N40080-10-D-0464. 

Task Order Number is Task Order 0001.


	Question:  Who held the contract prior to Hana Industries?



	The Solicitation is clear on its face.
	Question:  Are the uniform items listed required to be exact (i.e. blue dress shirt, etc.)?


	The Solicitation is clear on its face.
	Is the Security Education and Training support position required to wear a uniform?

	The Solicitation is clear on its face.

	Are there any differences in the uniform dress requirements for female Security Operations Support Specialists?



	See Part II
	Will the government provide minimum education and qualifications for each of the four functional areas? i.e Security Operations Center Personnel, Visitor Control Center Personnel, Security Escort Personnel, Security Education and Training Support. 



	See Part II 
	It is stated in the 2.2 position descriptions for the SOC, VCC and Escort personnel that “basic computing skills are necessary”. However, Section 3.10 states that personnel must “be a proficient user of MS Office 2010, specifically Outlook, Access, and Word”.  

Please define the computing skills for each of the following 4 functional areas listed in the PWS.



	The Solicitation is clear on its face.

	Contractor must be capable of being indoctrinated for SCI assess on the first day of the start of the contract.

Will employees with an active TS and eligible for SCI be able to start work upon Day 1 of POP or must they wait until their SCI access has been granted? 



	See Part II
	How long of a transition period does the government anticipates?

 

	CDRL that will be incorporated into the actual award document will require the monthly report to be submitted to the COR 5 days from the end of the month.


	Since the monthly report is a summary of activity for the monthly period, would the Government consider the contractor’s submission date to be 5 business days from the end of the month to allow time for the compilation and review of the requested information?



	The Solicitation is clear on its face.
	Does the contract require TS Facility storage capability as stated on the DD-254?

	The Solicitation is clear on its face.

	Security Operations:

Attachment 1 Training Courses and Descriptions - Will the CPR and First Aid training be provided to contractor personnel by the government at no cost to the contractor?



	Paragraph 3.9: The Solicitation is clear on its face.

Paragraph 3.10: See Part II
	Please refer to Items 3.9 and 3.10. Are these items about the same individual employee?



	The Solicitation is clear on its face.
	How is the contractor expected to handle OPM-directed closures such as district snow emergencies?



	The Solicitation is clear on its face.
	Are OPM-directed closures such as district snow emergencies considered surge?  




SECTION SF 1449 - CONTINUATION SHEET 

Solicitation #: N00189-16-R-Z030
Title: NCIS Security Services at RKB
Part II:
The RFP is hereby amended as follows:

SOLICITATION/CONTRACT FORM 

                The required response date/time has changed from 18-Aug-2016 03:00 PM to 31-Aug-2016 02:00 PM.

The following have been modified to correct the RFP number: 

INSTRUCTIONS
Point of Contact Information for this RFP is as follows: 

Thomas Carey

Phone:  Phone 215-697-9657

E-mail: thomas.carey2@navy.mil

Offers shall be sent to NAVSUP FLC, Norfolk Contracting Department, Philadelphia Office as follows:

NAVSUP FLC, Norfolk Contracting Department

Philadelphia Office

RFP Number N00189-16-R-Z030

700 Robbins Avenue, Bldg. 2B

Philadelphia, PA 19111-5083

Attention:  Thomas Carey

E-mail, fax or electronic (e.g. through NECO) proposals are NOT authorized.  Hand carried proposals are not encouraged.  This contracting office is located on a secured compound. Only personnel with current DoD Common Access Cards (CACs) or appropriate military credentials will be able to access the compound.  There will be no ability to drop off proposals outside the compound.

Questions regarding the contents of this Request for Proposal will be due no later than the 7th day after the posting date of this Request for Proposal.

Please complete a Registration in the System for Award Management (SAM) or verify that your current SAM Registration is valid and up to date.

Please see 52.212-1 for further instructions. Proposals will be evaluated in accordance with 52.212-2.

SUPPLIES OR SERVICES AND PRICES 

        CLIN 1002 

                The CLIN extended description has changed from TECHNICAL DATA IN ACCORDANCE WITH EXHIBIT A, DD FORM 1423.- POP 01 OCTOBER 2016 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2017.  PLEASE SEE THE ATTACHMENT. to TECHNICAL DATA IN ACCORDANCE WITH EXHIBIT A, DD FORM 1423.-  PLEASE SEE THE ATTACHMENT.. 

        CLIN 2002 

                The CLIN extended description has changed from TECHNICAL DATA IN ACCORDANCE WITH EXHIBIT A, DD FORM 1423.- POP 01 OCTOBER 2017 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2018.  PLEASE SEE THE ATTACHMENT. to TECHNICAL DATA IN ACCORDANCE WITH EXHIBIT A, DD FORM 1423.- PLEASE SEE THE ATTACHMENT.. 

        CLIN 3002 

                The CLIN extended description has changed from TECHNICAL DATA IN ACCORDANCE WITH EXHIBIT A, DD FORM 1423.- POP 01 OCTOBER 2018 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2019.  PLEASE SEE THE ATTACHMENT. to TECHNICAL DATA IN ACCORDANCE WITH EXHIBIT A, DD FORM 1423.-  PLEASE SEE THE ATTACHMENT.. 

        CLIN 4002 

                The CLIN extended description has changed from TECHNICAL DATA IN ACCORDANCE WITH EXHIBIT A, DD FORM 1423.- POP 01 OCTOBER 2019 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2020.  PLEASE SEE THE ATTACHMENT. to TECHNICAL DATA IN ACCORDANCE WITH EXHIBIT A, DD FORM 1423.-  PLEASE SEE THE ATTACHMENT.. 

        CLIN 5002 

                The CLIN extended description has changed from TECHNICAL DATA IN ACCORDANCE WITH EXHIBIT A, DD FORM 1423.- POP 01 OCTOBER 2020 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2021.  PLEASE SEE THE ATTACHMENT. to TECHNICAL DATA IN ACCORDANCE WITH EXHIBIT A, DD FORM 1423.-   PLEASE SEE THE ATTACHMENT.. 

Paragraph 3.10 of the Performance Work Statement (PWS) is hereby modified to read as follows:

3.10 Training and Awareness.  All contractor personnel may be required to attend initial and follow-on facility management training to meet mission requirements.  

Minimum Education and Qualifications:  Individual must be a security professional with a minimum of five (5) years of security experience with (1) year directly related to security operations.  Effective communication skills, customer-focused and strong writing skills are required.  Be a proficient user of Microsoft Office 2010, specifically Outlook, Access, and Word.

Contractor personnel proposed and/or selected will be subject to a government security investigation and must possess a current Top Secret security clearance and be eligible to receive favorable access to sensitive compartmented information.

The following have been added by full text: 

        DELIVERY INFO.
The delivery information shown in the original RFP is based upon an award date on or before 01 December 2016.  Should award be made after that date the delivery information will move to the right with the actual award date.  For example, should award be made on 01 February 2017, the performance start date for the base period will be 01 April 2017 (to allow for the 60 day ramp up) and the period of performance will run through 31 March 2018.  The option period of performance will likewise shift to the right. 

There is a 60 day ramp up to start of services for this solicitation 

The following have been deleted: 

	52.222-46 
	Evaluation Of Compensation For Professional Employees 
	FEB 1993 
	 

	5252.242-9404 
	Reporting Requirements (Jan 1992) 
	JAN 1992 
	 


The following have been added by reference: 

	52.222-43 
	Fair Labor Standards Act And Service Contract Labor Standards - Price Adjustment (Multiple Year And Option Contracts) 
	MAY 2014 
	 


The Addendum to 52.212-1 that starts on page #24 of the original RFP is hereby amended to read as follows:  A change has been made in the paragraph Volume II – Price.  In addition, the final paragraph of the original provision has been deleted.  The new provision is provided in its entirety as shown below.

ADDENDUM TO 52.212-1 “INSTRUCTIONS TO OFFERORS--COMMERCIAL ITEMS (FEB 2012) “

SUBMISSION OF PROPOSALS (BEST VALUE/TRADE-OFF) 

I. GENERAL

In addition to instructions to offerors contained elsewhere in this solicitation, the following instructions are provided.  

Initial proposals and any modifications thereto are to be submitted to the Contracting Officer on or before the closing date and time cited elsewhere in this Request for Proposals.  Faxes, e-mails, and/or responses through NECO or any method other than Hard Copy format are not acceptable.

Hand-carried proposals are not encouraged.  The Contracting Office is located on a secured compound.  Only personnel with current DoD Common Access Cards (CACs) or appropriate military credentials will be able to access the compound.  There will be no ability to drop off the proposals outside the compound.

Offerors shall submit their proposals in two separate volumes as follows:


Volume I
Non-price Proposal
Original and  3  copies


Volume II
Price Proposal
            Original and  1  copies

In addition, offers consist of and shall include the following items as part of Volume II:


Solicitation cover sheet with appropriate blocks completed by the offeror


Solicitation pricing pages completed by the offeror

Acknowledgement of solicitation amendments pursuant to FAR 52.215-1 (if not previously  acknowledged).

Representations and Certifications completed by the offeror in accordance with instructions contained 
elsewhere in this solicitation.  If the offeror has completed all of the representations and certifications required 
by this solicitation in ORCA in accordance with FAR 52.204-8 and DFARS 252.204-7007 ALT A, then the 
offeror need not submit the hardcopy Representations and Certifications.

The completion and submission of the above items will constitute an offer (proposal) and will be considered the offeror’s unconditional assent to the terms and conditions of this solicitation and any attachments and/or exhibits hereto.  Alternate proposals are not authorized.  An objection to any of the terms and conditions of the solicitation will constitute a deficiency (see FAR 15.001) which will make the offer unacceptable. 

Volume I 
Non-price Proposal

This volume shall address the factors of Performance Approach, Management/Staffing Plan and Past Performance and include all information required for proposal evaluation.  

This volume of the proposal shall exclude any reference to the price/cost aspects of the proposal.  

Each page of each copy should include the following legend:


Source Selection Information - See FAR 2.101 and 3.104

Volume II
Price Proposal

This volume shall include the completed solicitation documents and a complete and detailed price/cost breakdown with all supporting information.  Each page of each copy should include the following legend:


Source Selection Information - See FAR 2.101 and 3.104

IMPORTANT NOTES:

(1)  Offerors shall respond to all requirements of the solicitation document.  Offerors are cautioned not to alter the solicitation.

(2)  In the event any person who is not a bona fide employee of the offeror participated in the creation, formulation, or writing of any portion of the proposal, a certificate to this effect shall be included in the proposal which shall be signed by an officer of the offeror.  Such certificate shall identify the name of the person who is not a bona fide employee, that person’s employment capacity, the name of the person’s firm, the relationship of that firm to the offeror, and the portion of the proposal in which the person participated.

II. REQUIREMENTS FOR PROPOSAL CONTENT 

(1) Any offeror who will be submitting CLASSIFIED data in its Non-price proposal shall first notify the Contracting Officer by contacting the point of contact in the solicitation.  CLASSIFIED data that is forwarded as part of an offeror’s proposal shall be housed in its own binder, separate from the unclassified portion.

(2)  Introduction and Purpose - This section specifies the format that offerors should use in proposals submitted in response to this solicitation.  The intent is not to restrict the offerors in the manner in which they will perform their work but rather to ensure a certain degree of uniformity in the format of the proposals for evaluation purposes.

(3)  Each volume should contain the following items in addition to the other information required by this solicitation:



Cover:



The cover should indicate the following:








Title of the proposal








Volume Number (I or II)








Solicitation number








Name and address of offeror








Identification of original signature copies

Table of Contents:


The table of contents should provide detail sufficient to allow the important elements to be easily located.  The use of tabs and dividers is encouraged. 

(4)  Requirements for Style:  Each offeror shall submit a proposal that clearly and concisely sets forth the contractor’s response to the requirements of the solicitation.  Unnecessary elaboration or other presentations beyond that sufficient to present a complete and effective proposal are not desired and may be construed as an indication of the offeror’s lack of cost consciousness.  Elaborate artwork, expensive paper or bindings, and expensive visual or other presentation aids are neither necessary nor desired.  The proposal shall contain all the pertinent information in sufficient detail in the one area of the proposal where it contributes most critically to the discussion.  When necessary, the offeror shall refer to the initial discussion and identify its location within its proposal.

(5)  Page Limitations*
Volume I, “Non-price Proposal,” is limited to a maximum of 15 pages in length inclusive of any charts, diagrams, and/or other graphics.  Each “page” is defined as one sheet, 8 ½ “ x 11”, with at least one inch margins on all sides, using a font with a point size of 12 or greater (e.g., "Times New Roman" style with 12 point font).  Lines shall, at a minimum, be single-spaced.   Pages shall be consecutively numbered.  Multiple pages, double pages, two-sided pages, or foldouts will count as an equivalent number of 8 ½" x 11" pages.  The cover sheet, table of contents (not to exceed one page per volume), tabs, and dividers will not count toward the page limit.  The one exception to the font size requirement shown above is that the "past performance information forms" may be completed with a point size of 10 or greater.  Pages submitted in excess of the page limitations described above will not be evaluated.

Volume II, “Price Proposal,” is not page limited. 

III. PROPOSAL CONTENT

(1)  Volume I – Non-price Proposal

The non-price evaluation factors are listed below and are listed in descending order of importance with Performance Approach and Management/Staffing Plan being of equal importance and both are considered to be more important than Past Performance: 

Performance Approach     

Management/Staffing Plan

Past Performance

(a)  Performance Approach

The offeror shall provide in detail a performance approach that will successfully accomplish the requirements of the solicitation, including the PWS.  The offerors approach should detail key aspects of the tasks outlined in the PWS as well as provide a breakout of the team composition proposed to support the requirements of the PWS.  The offeror should describe any risks associated with the solicitation, including the PWS and any risks associated with implementation of the offeror’s performance approach; describe any techniques and actions to mitigate such risks; and explain whether the techniques and actions identified for risk mitigation have been successfully used by the offeror.  The offeror should provide any other information the offeror considers relevant to the solicitation.

(b)  Management/Staffing Plan

The offeror shall provide in detail a management approach that will successfully accomplish the requirements of the solicitation, including the PWS.  The offeror should provide a staffing plan that supports the requirements of the PWS as well as provide plans for recruitment and retention of staff, especially during any transition period.

Such approach should include a timeline for transition for this effort.  The offeror should provide a plan to demonstrate how they will handle surge support in accordance with the PWS. The offeror should describe any risks associated with the solicitation, including the PWS and any risks associated with implementation of the offeror’s management/staffing plan, describe any techniques and actions to mitigate such risks; and explain whether the techniques and actions identified for risk mitigation have been successfully used by the offeror.  The offeror should provide any other information the offeror considers relevant to the solicitation.

(c)
Past Performance

The offeror shall demonstrate relevant past performance or affirmatively state that it possesses no relevant past performance.  Relevant past performance is performance under contracts or efforts within the past five years that is the same as, or similar to, the scope and magnitude of the work described by this solicitation.

.

To demonstrate its past performance, the offeror shall identify three (3) of its most relevant contracts or efforts within the past five (5) years, and provide any other information the offeror considers relevant to the requirements of the solicitation.  Offerors should provide a detailed explanation demonstrating the relevance of the contracts or efforts to the requirements of the solicitation.  If subcontractor past performance is provided as part of the three of its most relevant contracts or efforts, the subcontractor past performance will be given weight relative to the scope and magnitude of the aspects of the work under the solicitation that the subcontractor is proposed to perform.  Therefore, the offeror’s proposal should detail clearly the aspects of the work in the solicitation that the subcontractor is proposed to perform.

The offeror should complete a “Past Performance Information Form” for each reference submitted.  The form is an attachment to the solicitation.  The forms will count toward the Volume I page limit described above.  For additional information regarding a particular reference beyond that which will fit on the form, the offeror may continue onto another sheet of paper.  Such continuation sheet(s) for submitted references will count toward the Volume I page limit.  

The offeror should address its past performance in complying with requirements of the clauses at FAR 52.219-8, "Utilization of Small Business Concerns," and 52.219-9, "Small Business Subcontracting Plan." (NA)

(2)  Volume II – Price

Volume II shall include the completed solicitation documents and a complete and detailed price breakdown with all supporting documentation in order to show compliance with the Collective Bargaining Agreement provided as an attachment to the RFP.  The price proposal shall include all elements of price and such other price information as considered appropriate to show compliance.  The pricing information shall be completed in accordance with the following:

(a)  Separate pricing information shall be submitted for each time period specified in the pricing pages of the solicitation.

(b)  For the purpose of preparing a price proposal, the offeror should assume that the period of performance shall encompass a base period of one year (commencing on 01 Feb 17), plus four (4) one-year option periods as follows:

Option I:

01 Feb18 through 31 Jan 19

Option II:

01 Feb19 through 31 Jan 20

Option III:
            01 Feb20 through 31 Jan 21

Option IV:

01 Feb21 through 31 Jan 22

(c) Any and all subcontracts identified in the Non-price proposal shall be identified and priced in the price proposal for the same purpose.  Subcontracts (regardless of dollar value) shall be adequately documented.  Subcontractor price breakdowns may be submitted in separate sealed envelopes.

(End of provision)

        LIST OF ATTACHMENTS
List of Documents, Exhibits and Other Attachments

Attachment V and VI are hereby incorporated as follows:  In addition, a new Attachment IV has been provided.  

ATTACHMENTS:
I. QUALITY ASSURANCE SURVEILLANCE PLAN (QASP) (PROVIDED AS A SEPARATE ATTACHMENT)

II. CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION PLAN (CAP) – FIRM-FIXED-PRICE (FFP) – (PROVIDED AS A SEPARATE ATTACHMENT)

III. PAST PERFORMANCE INFORMATION FORM- (SEE BELOW)

IV. ATTACHMENT TO THE PERFORMANCE WORK STATEMENT: “SECURITY OPERATIONS DOCUMENT - Attachment #1 DOCUMENTS, EXHIBITS, AND OTHER ATTACHMENTS” (PROVIDED AS A SEPARATE ATTACHMENT) 

V. Collective Bargaining Agreement between Hana Industries and the International Union, Security, Police, and Fire Professionals of America (SPFPA)

VI. Current Workload Data for Contract N00189-15-C-Z062


EXHIBITS:

I. DoD SECURITY – DD FORM 254 (PROVIDED AS A SEPARATE ATTACHMENT)

II. CONTRACT DATA REQUIREMENTS LIST (CDRL) – DD FORM 1423 (PROVIDED AS A SEPARATE ATTACHMENT) 

(End of Summary of Changes) 

